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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA

CHARLESTON DIVISION

SOUTH CAROLINA COASTAL
CONSERVATION LEAGUE,

Plaintiff,
V.

UNITED STATES ARMY CORPS OF
ENGINEERS, CHARLESTON DISTRICT;
LT. GENERAL ROBERT L. VAN
ANTWERP, in his official capacity as
Chief of Engineers, U.S. Army Corps

of Engineers; LT. COLONEL TREY
JORDAN, in his official capacity as District
Engineer, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers,
Charleston District; UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AGENCY; STEPHEN L. JOHNSON, in his )
official capacity as Administrator of the U.S)
Environmental Protection Agency; JAMES )
PALMER, in his official capacity of Regiona)
Administrator, Region IV, U.S. Environmentgl
Protection Agency; NATIONAL MARINE )
FISHERIES SERVICE; CARLOS M. )
GUTIERREZ, in his official capacity as )
Secretary of Commerc®0OY E. CRABTREE)

C/A 2:07-cv-03802-PMD

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

in his official capacity as Regional )
Administrator of the National Marine Fisherigs

Service Southeast Region, )

)

Defendants. )

Now comes the Plaintiff in this action and amends the Complaint as a matter of course
prior to service of a sponsive pleading pursuant to Ruled)xf the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, by filing the following First Amended Complaint.
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INTRODUCTION

1. This action seeks declaratory and injiugcrelief for the issuance of permits by
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Lieuten@aneral Robert L. Van Antwerp, and Lieutenant
Colonel Trey Jordan (collectively, the “Corp$ty a $1.2 billion marine container terminal and
highway project (the “Projectin Charleston, South Carolina, in violation of the National
Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”), 42 U.S.C. § 4321sety; the Clean Water Act (“CWA"),
33 U.S.C. § 1251, &eq; the Rivers and Harbors Act 899 (“RHA”), 33 U.S.C. § 403; and
the Endangered Species Act (“ESA”), 16 U.S.C. 88 153de@tThe Project consists of three
components: (1) a new 300-acre marine cargo auertaerminal at the former Charleston Naval
Base; (2) a new four-lane accesadahat will connect the terminal and its 10,000 vehicles a day
to I-26; and (3) two new additiohkanes for 1-26, a transportation artery that terminal truck
traffic will clog and cause to fail. Séechibits 1 and 2. Instead ahalyzing the Project as a
whole, as NEPA requires, the Corps piecemeitlietio smaller segments and by doing so
evaded the examination of alternatives to thagdet overall — alternatives with less impact on
human health, the environment, traffic congestand the public fisc. This piecemealing
ensured that that the Project’s cumulativeiemmental impacts went undisclosed, thus
allowing the selection of a predetermined outcorfbe Corps further violated NEPA by failing
to adequately analyze even t@mponent elements of the ovéRaloject, obscuring the fact that
pollution from the terminal and connecting highway will cause Charleston to exceed national
maximum air standards for soot and will deysrexygen levels in the Cooper River to below
state water quality standards — violatiorat thegatively impact public health and the
environment and promise severe hardships for economic development in the Charleston

metropolitan area.
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2. In addition, the Corps is in violatiaf section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §
1344, Section 10 of the RHA, 33 U.S.C. § 403, ardriplementing regulations of both statutes
with respect to the final environmental iaqt statement (“FEIS”) published for the above-
referenced project on December 15, 2006, the Rexfddecision (“ROD”) for the same project,
and the issuance of two 404 and Section 10 peffor the same project, Permit Number 2003-
IT-016-P-C (for the marine container termal) and Permit No. 2005-1N-440-P-C (for the
highway connecting the terminal to Interstatg. 28/ith a statutory duty to ensure compliance
with the 404(b)(1) Guidelines, the EnvironmédrReotection Agency, Administrator Stephen L.
Johnson, and Regional Administrator James Pajoadlectively, “EPA”) and the Corps violated
the CWA by failing to considemal select a less damaging, practleaddternative to the Project
in addition to other violations deribed herein. Finally, Plaifitiseeks relief from the conduct of
the National Marine Fisheries Service, ®tary of the Commerce Carlos M. Gutierrez,
Regional Administrator Roy E. @btree (collectively “NMFS”), ad the Corps that is arbitrary,
capricious and otherwise contrapythe legal requirements of the ESA with respect to the
endangered North Atlantic right whaleubalaena glacialis— one of the most endangered
marine mammals in the world. In brief, NMFS,veall as the Corps, failed to acknowledge the
likelihood that the Project will inelase the incidents ship strikes, a leading cause of right
whale mortality. This lawsuit seeks to halie misleading and @@mplete studies and
determinations that serve as the bases for the permitting decisions and the permits themselves set
aside and to compel a new, complete analysiddloét in earnest at the costs and benefits of —
and best alternatives for — ntieg the region’s comiiner shipping needs in a way that protects
human health and the region’s natural resousioesimperiled marine life while ensuring that

public funds are conservatively expended.
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JURISDICTION

3. The jurisdiction of this Court is invekl pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (federal
guestion), 28 U.S.C. § 1361, 28 U.S.C. § 2a0d 2202 (declaratory judgment), 33 U.S.C. §
1365(a) and (b) (CWA citizen suit provisiod U.S.C. § 1540(g)(1) (ESA citizen suit
provision), and the Administrative Rredure Act (“APA”), 5 U.S.C. 88 701-706.

4, Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).

PARTIES
Plaintiff

5. Plaintiff South Carolina Gxstal Conservation Leaguéé¢t“League”) is a not-for-
profit corporation founded in 1989. The Leaguencorporated under the laws of South
Carolina, and maintains its hagpuarters office in Charleston, Sbuarolina. Its mission is to
protect the natural environmenttbe South Carolina coastal plaand to enhance the quality of
life of South Carolina communities by workingtvindividuals, businesses, and government to
ensure balanced solutions. Its mission inciutthe protection of mare wildlife species,
including the North Atlantic righivhale, and their Hatats, and to conséng coastal and ocean
resources. The League currently has appraeiyd,000 members, many of whom live in and
around Charleston, South Carolina, and are affdnydtie air quality, water quality, and growth
patterns in the region, including méers who reside, work, tray@nd otherwise engage in a
variety of activities in Charleston near the sitehe proposed marir@ntainer taminal, its
proposed access road, and the related proposedjes to the 1-26 corma through Charleston.
These members also use the roads, maringsyaiteers, marshes, wetlands, and other public
spaces in and around the Port of Charleston antd26 corridor for traveling, boating, fishing,

recreation, wildlife obsemrtion and education, and aesthetnd spiritual purposes. These
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interests — including their interest in protectthgir health and quality of life and in seeing
public resources conservatively expended on lmedstructure and having those investments
protected — are directly and irrephly injured by Defendants’ violans of law described in this
First Amended Complaint.

6. The League monitors and participateport, highway, and transportation
planning in Charleston Countyd has participated in theradistrative processes surrounding
the planning of the marine container termiitalaccess road, the associated widening of I-26,
and related construction projectds staff and members haparticipated in the process
culminating in approval of the pmit applications for the marine container terminal and access
road that are specifically challenged in thisegaand in the ongoing process of evaluating the
associated I-26 expansion, lyeading public meetings, providy written andoral comments
and information, writing editorials, and morritoy the permitting process, among other things.
The League seeks to inform and educate itsib&s and the public noerning port, highway,
and transportation planning and the impacts ohslecisions on the human environment. It
advocates for port and transportation planninggoiities that will have the least long-term
impact on the human environment. These omgitinal interests arerdictly and irreparably
injured by the Defendants’ violations of law delsed in this First Amended Complaint.

7. The League and its members havénéerest in seeing the dictates and
procedures of NEPA, the CWA, the RHA, th8A, and the APA upheld and followed so that
the organization and its members can enjoyexaicise their informational and procedural
rights, including the right teducate themselves and the publout environmental concerns
and policy issues affecting ti@ooper River, Charleston Harband threatened and endangered

marine life, such as the North Atlantic righibale, as well as thight to have federal
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environmental decision-making carried outctordance with the evaluative and notice
requirements of applicable law and regulationeséhorganizational intests are also directly
and irreparably injured by the Bdants’ violations of law deribed in this First Amended
Complaint.

8. Members of the League reasonably beliba¢ if the current Project proceeds it
will harm their health and the health of theimifies, diminish their property values, and cause
significant negative environmental impacts to wildafed to an area they use and value. They
further believe that other project alternaBwvould pose fewer netgge impacts to their
property, health and wellbeing, ambuld better ensure that logafrastructure is maintained
and remains properly functional.

Defendants

9. Defendant U.S. Army Corps of Engineés a federal agency within the U.S.
Department of the Army. The Corps had the primary responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the environmental analysis cimgél in this action and for ensuring that this
analysis complied with NEPA. It also has théydof evaluating applidéons for the Department
of the Army permits under Section 404 oé tBlean Water Act, for ensuring that the
requirements of Section 404 and the Section 403&(ljlelines are fulfilled, and for ensuring that
the requirements of NEPA and the ESA alélfed in connection with all evaluation and
decision-making concerning such permits.e Qorps issued the Environmental Impact
Statement (“EIS”), the Record of Decision, and fiermits that are theibject of this action

through its district office in Clrleston, South Carolina.
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10. Defendant Lieutenant General RoberVan Antwerp is Chief of Engineers and
Commanding General of the Corps. As suchshbe official responsible for actions taken by
the Corps and is sued in his official capacity.

11. Defendant Lieutenant Colonel Treydkn is the Commmaler and District
Engineer for the Charleston District of the Corand is sued in his official capacity. He
supervises and manages all Charleston Distrigsoiss and actions, and is the official successor
to Edward R. Fleming, who held this posit@ithe time of the inadequate environmental
analysis, Record of Decai, and permits that are cleadged in this action.

12. Defendant U.S. EPA is the agency of the United States with ultimate
responsibility for compliance ith the Clean Water Act in éhissuance of permits under CWA
Section 404 for the discharge of dredged of fill matento waters of the United States, and for
compliance with the CWA Section 404(b) Gelites in the issuae of such permits.

13. Defendant Stephen L. Johnson is the Adstnaior of the U.S. EPA. He is sued
in his official capacity.

14. Defendant James Palmer is the Regiéahinistrator of Region IV of the U.S.
EPA, which is the region encongsang the state of South Carolinde is sued in his official
capacity.

15. Defendant National Marirtésheries Service, part tifie National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration, a dision of the Department of Comnee, is the agency of the
United States government responsible for adsténing and implementing the ESA for the North
Atlantic right whale and generallg responsible for the stewahils of the nation’s living marine
resources and their habitat.

16. Defendant Carlos M. Gutierrez, SecrgtarCommerce, is sued in his official
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capacity only. If ordered by the Court, Mr. Guatez has the authority and ability to remedy the
harm inflicted by the illegal actions described herein.

17. Defendant Dr. Roy E. Crabtree, Rewl Administrator of NMFS Southeast
Region is sued in his officialapacity only. If ordered byehcourt, Dr. Crabtree has the
authority and ability to remedy the harm inflidtBy the illegal actions described herein.

FEDERAL REGULATORY AND STATUTORY BACKGROUND

National Environmental Policy Act

18. In the National Environmental Policy A€ongress required all federal agencies
to interpret and administer the policies, regala, and public laws of the United States in
accordance with the policies of NEPA “to thdldat extent possible.” 42 U.S.C. § 4332. A
federal agency must prepare or adopt andslfart of every recommendation or report on
proposals for major Federal actions that sigjnificantly affect tle quality of the human
environment. 42 U.S.C. 8§ 4332(2)(C).

19. The EIS requirement serves two functioRsst, it ensures thatn agency takes a
hard look at a proposed projecgnvironmental effects befodeciding whether to recommend
it. Second, the EIS ensures that relevant inédion about a proposed project is made available
to members of the public so that they may @awle in both the decision-making process and
the implementation of the decision.

20. To implement the requirements of NEPégulations applicable to all federal
agencies have been promulgated by the Council on Environmental Quality (“CEQ”), 40 C.F.R.
88§ 1500-1508. In addition, the Corps has promutheggulations and adopted procedures for
complying with NEPA in the processing of patment of the Army permits, 33 C.F.R. 325

Appendix B, to supplement the CEQ’s NEPA regulations.
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Regulations implemented under NEPA allow pineparation of an Environmental Assessment
(“EA”) where a federal action may not have sigzaht impacts or is derwise not required to
have an EIS. 40 C.F.R. 88 1501.3, 1508.9.

21. NEPA requires an agency to includamEIS or EA a “detailed statement” on
“alternatives to the proposed action.” 45LC. § 4332(2)(C)(iii); 40 C.F.R. 8 1508.9. The
agency is required to rigorously explore andcechyely evaluate all reasonable alternatives. 40
C.F.R. 8§ 1502.14(a). This requirement specificedbludes a mandate that an EIS or EA for a
Section 404 wetland permit includescussions of reasonabléeahatives. 33 C.F.R. § 325,
App. B (7)(a), (9)(b)(5).

22. NEPA requires an agency to includen EIS a “detailed statement” on
“alternatives to the proposed action.” 42 U.§@332(2)(C)(ii)). NEPA provides that an
agency must “study, develop, adéscribe appropriate alternats/to recommended courses of
action in any proposal whichvolves unresolved conflicts cogrning alternative uses of
available resources.” IdSection 4332(2)(E). The agencyégjuired to rigorously explore and
objectively evaluate all reasdria alternatives. 40 C.F.B.1502.14(a). This requirement
specifically includes a mandate that an EiSa Section 404 wetland permit “should discuss
geographic alternatives,g, changes in location and other ssfgecific variables, and functional
alternativese.g, project substitutes and desigodifications.” 33 C.F.R. § 325, App.
B(9)(b)(5)(c).

23. In order to frame the explorationaifernatives, NEPA requires that an EIS
contain a statement of purpose and need fptbposed action which “shall briefly specify the
underlying purpose and need to which the agénogsponding in propoy) the alternatives

including their proposed actidn40 C.F.R. § 1502.13; s&3 C.F.R. § 325, App. B(9)(b)(4).
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The Corps is required to exercise indepengetgment in defining the purpose and need and
must reject overly restrictive seahents of project purpose and néeat might tend to direct or
bias the outcome of the Corps’ evadloa required under th404(b)(1) Guidelines.

Clean Water Act

24. In 1972, Congress passed the Clean Wate“to restore and maintain the
chemical, physical, and biologicaltegrity of the Nation’s waters.” 33 U.S.C. § 1251(a). To
achieve this objective, Section 301 of the CV88,U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits “the discharge of
any pollutant” into “navigable waters” excaptaccordance with water quality standards
promulgated and permits issued under other sectibtie CWA. “Pollutants” include dredged
spoil, rock, and sand, among othertenels. 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6).

The term “waters of the United Stat@scludes wetlands. 40 C.F.R. § 232.2.

25. Section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 13ddthorizes the Seetary of the Army
to issue permits for the discharge of dredgefillonaterial into “navigable waters,” including
wetlands, when certain conditions are mete Bection 404 permitting program is administered
by the Corps. Unless exempted by Section 4@)(f)Gder circumstances not relevant to this
action, all discharges of dredged or fill matenb waters of the United States, including
wetlands, must be authorized under ati8act04 permit issued by the Corps.

26. In reviewing a Section 404 applicatitime Corps must follow rules developed by
EPA under Section 404(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S8A.344(b), which are known as the “404(b)(1)
Guidelines.” The 404(b)(1) Guitines are codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 230. The Corps is
prohibited from issuing any permihless there is “sufficient information to make a reasonable
judgment as to whether the proposed discharfeamply with the Guidelines.” 40 C.F.R. §

230.12(a)(3)(iv).

10
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27.  These Section 404(b)(1) Guidelines\pde that a 404 permit should not be
issued unless it can be demonstrated that there will not be unacceptable adverse ecological
impacts, and state that there can be “noldisge” into water of the United States if a
practicable, environmentally pexfble alternative exists.

28. Under CWA Section 404(c), 33 U.S.C. 8§ 1344(c), the EPA is granted final
authority over the Corps’ application of acoimpliance with the 404(b)(1) Guidelines and may
veto the issuance of a Sexti404 permit when the proposed activity will cause unacceptable
adverse ecological impacts.

Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899

29. A Section 10 permit under the RHA is riggd for the construction of bridges,
dams, ports, and other structures over the nhlegaaters of the United States. The Corps’
criteria for evaluating a permipglication under Seain 10 of the RHA are set forth at 33 C.F.R.
§ 320.4. Pursuant to these regulations, the “[dieciwhether to issue a permit will be based on
an evaluation of the probable impacts, includinghulative impacts, of the proposed activity
and its intended use on the public intere®3'C.F.R. § 320.4(a). All factors which may be
relevant to the proposal must considered including the culative effects thereof. Among
those are: conservation, economics, aesthef@®eral environmeritaoncerns, wetlands,
historic properties, fish and wildlife vads, flood hazards, floodplain values, land use,
navigation, shore erosion and accretion, recreatiater supply and conservation, water quality,
energy needs, safety, food and fiber productimingeral needs, considerations of property
ownership, and, in general, the needs and welfare of the people. Id.

Endangered Species Act

30. The ESA was enacted to provide a meéam®nserve threatened and endangered

11
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species and to conserve the ®siems upon which those speaepend. 16 U.S.C. § 1531(b).

The ESA calls for all Federal agencies to use thathority to seek to conserve threatened and
endangered species. 16 U.S.@581(c). In addition, the ESA @hibits the take of endangered
and certain threatened spedisted under the ESA. 16 U.S.C. § 1538(a)(1). Take of a listed
species meangjter alia, to harass, harm, kill, trap or capture the species. 16 U.S.C. § 1532(19).
An actor can take a listed species withinreaning of the ESA by killing or injuring an

individual member of the spe&s, or by engaging in an dbtat causes significant habitat
modification or degradation which kills or imgs fish or wildlifeby significantly impairing

essential behavioral patterns, including, bregdspawning, rearing, migrating, feeding or
sheltering. 50 C.F.R. § 222.102.

31. To accomplish these goals, the ESA nexguihat each Federal agency (“action
agency”) insure that any action authoriziohded, or carried out by such agency does not
jeopardize the continued existence of a threstesr endangered spes or result in the
destruction or adverse modificatiohhabitat that the Seetary has determined to be critical for
such species. 16 U.S.C. 8§ 1536(a)(2). In fugthee of that goal, the ESA requires that each
Federal agency shall consult with the Natidviarine Fisheries Service (“consulting agency”)
for federally endangered marine species, sud¢heaslorth Atlantic ht whale, on any action
which is likely to result in jeopardy or desttion or adverse modification of critical habitat,
using the best scientific and commercial datailable. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(a)(2); 50 C.F.R. §
402.01(b); 50 C.F.R. § 223l 0 this end, the action ageneyay provide the consulting agency
with a biological assessment outlining the actiod the effects of that action on the species. 16
U.S.C. 8§ 1536(c); 50 C.F.R. § 402.12.

32.  After consultation has ended, the adtisg agency shall provide the action

12
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agency with a written statement, known dsaogical opinion, which must set forth the
consulting agency’s opinion, and the informatigoon which that opinion is based, and detail
how the action will affect the species or its catihabitat. 16 U.S.C. § 1536(b)(3)(A). In
arriving at its biological opinion, ghconsulting agency, using thesbscientific and commercial
data available, must review all relevant mf@ation provided by the acticagency, evaluate the
current status of the species, evaluate threctsffof the action and the cumulative effects on the
species or critical habitat, afiermulate its opinion as to whethhe action, taketogether with
cumulative effects will jeopardize the continued tease of the species or adversely modify its
critical habitat. 50 C.F.R. § 402.14(g)(1-4, 8).

Administrative Procedure Act

33. The Administrative Procedure Act, 58JC. 88 701-06, provides that “[a] person
suffering legal wrong because of agency actiomdwersely affected @ggrieved by agency
action within the meaning of a relevant statutenstled to judicial reviewhereof.” 5 U.S.C. §
702.

34. The APA provides that a court shall sedl@asgency “findings, conclusions, and
actions” that are “arbitrary, capricious, or an abakdiscretion of oth&vise not in accordance
with law.” 5 U.S.C. 8 706(2)(A).

35. The reviewing court must carefully “catar whether the decision was based on a
consideration of the relevaradtors and whether there has baeaear error in judgment.”

Citizens to Preserve Overton Park, Inc. v. Vol U.S. 402 (1971).

13
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FACTS

Charleston, South Carolina

36. The South Carolina State Ports Authofi§PA”) currently orates five large
terminals in the Port of Charleston: Northalleston Terminal, Columbia Street Terminal,
Wando Welch Terminal, Veterans Terminal, andddrPier Terminal. SPA’s three container
terminals — North Charleston, Columbia &treand Wando Welch — have an estimated
maximum annual throughput capacity ofeddt 2.6 million twenty-foot equivalent units
(“TEUS”) of containers. Contaimg travel to and from SPAterminals overwhelmingly by truck
because SPA terminals lack true on-dock “imedal” rail connections to allow wholesale
transfer of containemirectly between ship and rail. Cairters transported to and from the
Charleston area by rail must be trucked between SteAisinals and Charleston’s two railyards.
These “drayage” trucks, along with many more thadsaof trucks that gdirectly to and from
SPA'’s terminals, use I-26, Charlestomain transportation artery, every day.

37.  Along with the trucks that would transptire cargo to and from the terminal, the
container ships, tug boats, and terminal yard egeijirased to handle therga burn diesel fuel.
Diesel combustion produces a variety of air polligaabarse and fine pailate matter (soot),
nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxidend a variety of air toxins. Case and fine particulates cause
and contribute to respiratorya cardiac problems, infectionstlawa attacks, lung cancer, and
decreased life expectancy. Likewise, grounagl®zone, of which miogen dioxide is a
precursor, is a potent lung irritant that dansaged scars lung tissaed contributes to or
exacerbates diseases of lung dysfunction asdsthma and emphysema, particularly in

sensitive populations such as children amdelalerly. Nitrogen oxides cause lung disease,

14
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irritation and dysfunctiorand contribute to ozone formatigrarticulate matter production, and
acid deposition. Sulfur dioxideduces respiratory capacégpd also contributes to acid
deposition.

38. Several toxins produced by diesel boistion are carcinogens. These pollutants
work synergistically to causedHhoregoing health effects, leadito reduced life expectancy and
increased health care costs. Air toxins frdiesel fuel combustion are most significant for
populations located closest to tehicles burning the diesel fuek., yard equipment, vessels,
and tractor trailers hauling camers. Studies conducted in theinity of several California
ports show that the diesel esgions are responsible for 70%tloé area’s cancer risk stemming
from air pollution, that cancer rates are tenesnhigher within 20 mikeof a major port than
elsewhere in the state, and thatpollution from the shippg of goods by land and sea causes
approximately 750 premature deaths in tladeseach year. Another study, published in
November 2007 by the American Chemical Society jouEmaironmental Science &
Technologyestimates that the number of people whemldiom heart and lung disease as a result
of harmful emissions from ocean-goingmmting vessels totaled 60,000 worldwide in 2002, a
death toll estimated to grow by 40 percent byytsar 2012 due to the ctimued large increase in
global shipping traffic.

39. Ships, trucks and other vehicles aggnificant source of carbon dioxide and
other greenhouse gases that dbnte to global warming anclimate change. Accordingly,
increases in Port traffic inease greenhouse gas emissionsdbiatribute to global warming and
climate change.

40. Charleston has significant and worsempngpblems with water quality that have

resulted from the city’s growth and fromrdPoperations that will be exacerbated by the

15
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construction of the marine container terminakatie in this actionA Total Maximum Daily
Load prepared by the S.C. Department efkth and Environmental Control in December 2002
indicates that the Charlestonar, including the Goper River in the aa of the proposed
project, does not meet applicable water qualigndards for dissolved oxygen and is therefore
considered to be water quality limited. The pregubBroject will cause a decrease in dissolved
oxygen levels below state water {ityastandards and harm thquatic community that depends
on the waters of Charleston Harbor and the Cooper River.

41. The Project also threateane of the most endangered marine mammals in the
world — the North Atlantic right whale — with gn250 to 300 still alive. FEIS at 5-149. As
NMFS has acknowledged, the death of even one wglate due to non-natural causes could lead
to the extinction of the specieboreover, the expansion of port fhibes is particularly relevant
for this imperiled species as “[c]ollisions wiships are the single largest cause of right whale
mortality in the westeriorth Atlantic.” 71 Fed. Reg. 77704, 77710 (Dec. 27, 2006).
According to NMFS:

The available evidence strongly suggéists the western popation of the North
Atlantic right whale cannot sustain the riugn of deaths that result from ship
strikes and fishing gear interactions. Itimpact of these activities continues at
current rates, it is likely to result the extirpation of th western population of
North Atlantic right whales Given the low populationze of North Atlantic right

whales in the eastern Atlantic ocean, therpation of right whales in the western
Atlantic Ocean would render the artspecies effectively extinct.

71 Fed. Reg. at 77714 (emphasis added).

Proposed Marine Container Terminal and Related Construction

42. SPA and the South Carolina Departm@ntransportation (“DOT”) applied for
permits to construct two components of the oN&haject. SPA sought permits to build a new

marine container terminal on the southemd ef the former Charleston Navy Complex. DOT

16
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proposed to build a four-lane access roadway ectimg the terminal to I-26. The terminal and
roadway are interrelated andendependent parts of an oak endeavor intended to
accommodate increased amounts of amatrized cargo through Charleston.

43. The SPA terminal would require drenlgiand excavating approximately 78 acres
of open water in the Cooper River to createll.5-acre wharf areada 65.8-acre berth and
access channel area, with three 1,000-foot-londpdBedeep berths. An estimated six to 12
ship-to-shore container craneswid transfer containers betwegmps and a 287-acre terminal —
a large paved staging and storage yard where taasksome to deposit and retrieve containers.
Construction of the terminal will requireglexcavation of 6.45 milliocubic yards of fill
material from an undisclosed location and plac&noé that material on approximately 70 acres
of open water habitat, tidal marsh, freshwatersingand other wetlands, provide a substrate
on which the terminal’s container storage yailll we constructed. Water quality in the Cooper
River will degrade as a direstsult of the construction oféiterminal, both through direct
destruction of wetlands and marsh and througheisised surface runoff into the Cooper River.

44, The terminal is estimated to cost in excess of $600 million.

45, The DOT access road consists of a 1.2-mile raised roadway, a new bridge across
Shipyard Creek, and a new interchange with 1-26 (near current Exit 217). The road will directly
impact wetlands and will involve the additiohapproximately 10,000 vehicles a day onto 1-26,
including 7,000 truck trips per day.

46. The access road is estimateddst in excess of $250 million.

47.  Although SPA and DOT are, respectivéhe individual apptants for permits
for the terminal and the connewiroad, these compondatilities were propdy treated as part

of an overall Project in the EIS and Regtof Decision completed by the Corps.
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48. However, the Corps did not includet® EIS a third Project component —
constructing two additional ihees on 1-26 along a 5.3-mile-losggment from the proposed
terminal access road (around EXif7) to the intersection with526 (Exit 212) (the “northwest
leg” of I-26) — as a related or connectatlion to the terminal and connecting highway.

49, The addition of vehicles from the tenal and connecting road to I-26 will cause
some segments of 1-26 that currently provide aat#ptlevels of service to reach failing levels
of service when they would otherwigeovide acceptable levels of service.

50. The addition of vehicles from the tenal and connecting road to I-26 will cause
segments of I-26 that currently provide acceptéblels of service to reach failing levels of
service years earlier than would occur withoet dldldition of vehicles from the terminal and
connector road.

51. The addition of vehicles from the tenal and connecting road to I-26 will cause
segments of I-26 that currently provide acceptéblels of service to reach failing levels of
service months earlier than wduccur without the addition of vehicles from the terminal and
connector road.

52.  Traffic predictions produced in conjaion with the Corps’ EIS process for the
terminal and highway prompted the init@tiof a study concerning the widening of the
northwest leg of 1-26,e., from the port terminal road out kb26. DOT and its contractors held
meetings to discuss the widening and recoghihat the widening wdselated” to the new
terminal and connecting road.

53. The Corps, aware of this parallel studyhe northwest leg of 1-26, indicated to
DOT a preference that the studytbé 1-26 widening be timed to coincide with or precede the

Record of Decision for the terminal and connecting highway.
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54. The Federal Highway Administrati¢“FHWA”) was also involved in
discussions and analysis ofdening I-26 and modifying interchges between the terminal road
at 1-526.

55.  Another study conducted by the regict@incil of governmestwas undertaken
to examine whether I-26 needed to be widkftem the proposed teinal access road (Exit
217) towards downtown Charlest(Exit 219) (the “southeastdé of I-26). That study
concluded that most port traffic would use thetm@est leg and not th@stheast leg, and that
the southeast leg need not be widened.

56. The dividing line between the portion d6-not to be widened and that which is
to be widened is the port access road interchange.

57. The construction to widen the northwiest of 1-26 will cost an estimated $300
million. That cost and construction are not ackremgled as Project costs or impacts in the EIS
or ROD for the terminal that are challenged in this action.

58.  The Corps is responsible for evaluatamgl disclosing all environmental impacts
of all aspects of the Project as part of tlieity to evaluate applitians by SPA and DOT for
permits under Section 404 of the Clean Watet, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, among other laws.

59. The Corps has proceeded to analyzessud permits for two components of the
Project (the marine contain@rminal and terminal accessad) without including the other
component (the 1-26 widemj) as a portion or comonent of the Project.

60. Should the Project go forward as pled, it will have significant cumulative
environmental impacts beyond the impacts of the terminal and access road segments alone.

Moreover, the overall Project will cost at |e&800 million more than those segments alone will
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cost. Finally, the available alternatives to thejéut as a whole are diffent than, and must be
compared differently than, the altetivas available for those two segments.

The Planning and Environmental AnalysislLack Thereof, for the Proposed Project

61. The Port of Charleston already has theacay to handle a sigincant portion — at
least nine percent — of thetima’s containerized sea cargo. 4006, it ranked as the fourth
busiest port on America’s East and Gulf Coastd, the eighth busiest nationwide. The terminal
and connecting highway were proposed by SPA #blenit to maintain its market share on the
eastern seaboard.

62. In approximately 1999, SPA estimatedtttne Port of Charleston’s existing
terminals had a maximum praclacapacity of 2.6 million TEUSSPA estimated that actual
throughput for the Port of Charleston could grow from 1.65 TEUs in 2004 to 4.0 million TEUS in
2025, and that additional terminal capacity vibloé needed to accommodate such additional
throughput. The Corps has never analyzed plagxed why the additional throughput could not
be served by existing or increased capacitttar ports on the eastern seaboard. Nor has SPA
explained why this could not occur.

63. Given the breadth of the shipping laaad the distance the cargo ships travel
over the open ocean, numerous ports on theEzestt are available sccommodate the cargo
volumes that SPA hopes to handle at the proptesednal, including a privately run terminal
recently constructed in Virginia and a publiclyrmd terminal in Savannah, both of which have
on-dock intermodal rail, or a potial terminal at a site idasper County, South Carolina,
controlled jointly by Soutl€arolina and Georgia.

64. On January 24, 2003, SPA submitted an application to the Corps for a permit

under Section 404 of the CWA andd@ion 10 of the RHA to consict the new marine container
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terminal described above. The application dbsd a proposed marine container terminal with
wharf and crane structures and container-praagdacilities to bebuilt west of the Cooper
River, between the Cooper River and Shipy@rdek, on the grounds of the former Charleston
Navy Complex.

65. In February 2003, the Corps notified StRAt, pursuant to NEPA, an EIS would
be required for the proposed terminal. The Cprgdished a Notice of Intent to prepare an EIS
on February 19, 2004. The Corps invited the FHW Aarticipate in preparing the EIS as a
cooperating agency.

66. On August 10, 2005, after preparing a study entitled, “Access Roadway
Feasibility Study,” DOT submitted an application to the Corps for a separate permit under
Section 404 of the CWA and Section 10 of Rt#A. This application sought a permit to
construct a four-lane limited-ac®highway to connect the proposedrine container terminal
with 1-26. Public notice of that permit pigcation was sent out on January 13, 2006.

67. The Corps and FHWA published affiEIS (“DEIS”) in October 2005, and
invited public comments until December 20, 20@8ter several extensions, the time for public
comment on the marine container terminal eeghion February 17, 2006, and the time for public
comment on the terminal access roadway expired on April 19, 2006.

68. On March 29, 2006, the Corps determitieat the proposed Project was not
likely to adversely affect the endangered Ndxtlantic right whale and requested concurrence
from NMFS pursuant to the Endangered Speats Based on their review of the Project,
NMFS elected to initiate formal consultation un&ection 7 of the ESA due to concerns about
the potential effects of incread shipping traffic on right whales. On October 3, 2006, NMFS

sent a letter to the Corpsrcluding its consultation responiities under the ESA based on its
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determination that, based on mitigation measuhesProject’s shipping related effects on the
North Atlantic right whale are “discount&bor insignificant.” FEIS, Appendix R.

69. The Corps and FHWA then published a final EIS (“FEIS”) on December 15,
2006. The FEIS recommended the constructionngdane container terminal at the Port of
Charleston with the proposed access road aSadngs’ preferred alternative. Public comments
on the FEIS were accepted until February 2, 2007. The League submitted further comments
outlining deficiencies in the FEIS’ treatment obfect impacts and alternatives and its failure to
include the I-26 widening as a component & Broject, since indepdent traffic modeling
showed that traffic from the terminal would sau-26 to reach a failg level of service and
therefore require expansion.e@use widening was an interrefdipart of the Project whose
impacts should be considered as a cumulatngact of the terminal and connecting highway,
the League requested that a supplementabEl&mpleted and thaermits not issue.

70. On or about April 26, 2007, the Coipsued a permit under Section 404 of the
Clean Water Act and Section 10 of the RHArfpit number 2003-1T-016) that granted SPA’s
application for a permit for the marine contaiterminal, accompanied by a Record of Decision
that approved both the marine container termamal the terminal access road. Lieutenant
Colonel Edward R. Fleming, then Districtgneer and predecessor of Defendant Jordan,
authorized both documents on behalf of the Corps of Engineers.

71. On or about April 25, 2007, pursuanthie FEIS and ROD described above, the
Corps proffered the permit for the access roadiwaDOT for its review and signature. DOT
signed and returned the permit to the CorpSaptember, 2007, and that permit for the access

road (permit number 2005-1N-440)shaow become final and effective.
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72. The Record of Decision issued by @@ps on April 26, 2007 constitutes a final
agency action approving both thenenal and the access road.

73. As related above, during the permit evaluation process for the proposed marine
container terminal and its access road, officiaB@T, based on predictions of increased traffic
on the northwest leg of I-26 achieving failing l&svef service there, convened meetings to
address the widening of I-26 ‘aslated” to the port termid and connecting highway.

74. Despite that recognition, neither ther@ DOT, FHWA, nor SPA included the
widening of 1-26 in the definition of the Projectiarthe impacts of theroject evaluated in the
FEIS. To the contrary, beginning in 1&@06, DOT, with the knowledge of the Corps and
FHWA, initiated a nominally independent rew process for the I-26 widening between 1-526
and the new port terminal access road.

75. On April 19, 2007, FHWA, in conjunction with DOT, issued an Environmental
Assessment (“EA”) for the widening, purporting taexne the effects of and alternatives to the
widening of 1-26 on the northwest leg betweea ttrminal access road interchange and 1-526.
The document was entitled “Environmentas&ssment: 1-26 Improvements from 1-526 (Exit
212) to North Meeting Street (Exit 217).” Castent with the Corps’ wishes, this document
preceded the Corps’ RecooflDecision on the terminal.

76. The Corps’ limitation of the scope ottRA severs the widening project from the
terminal and connecting road projéicat would give rise to thesed for it. By doing so, the EA
conceals the fact that the terminal and dsess road are the proximate cause of the 1-26
widening. Thus, the EA assumes that the marine container terminal and access road will be
built, and does not examine what would occur26 if those components of the Project were

not built and 1-26 were also not widenea true “no action” alternative.
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77. By assuming the condition precedent for widening, the EA avoids any
consideration of alternatives such as aaarnection to the terminal that could make the
widening unnecessary. The EA also assumeghbawvidening considerealone will create no
significant environmental impacts atitus need not be the subjecteoinore detailed analysis in
a full-blown environmental impact statement, desthe widening'’s relatinship with the larger
Project that was subject to an EIS.

78. As mentioned above, the point where pamtinal traffic would enter and leave
[-26 served as a terminus for not only the norttv26 widening study, bulso for a study that
examined I-26 widening towards downto@harleston. In December 2006, the Berkeley
Charleston Dorchester Council of Governmeantsived a report it had commissioned entitled
“Interstate 26 Relocation Feasity Study Final Report.” Thatlocument concluded that that
southeast leg of 1-26 would not be affected laffic from the proposed terminal sufficiently to
need to be widened or relocated, unlike theipomwestward from the port terminal intersection,
which would both be affected and need to be widened.

79. This Feasibility Study did not address the likelihood that expansion of 1-26
westward of the terminal highway could induce additional traffic eastward of that point once the
Project is complete. Because the widening28’s northwest leg codlinduce the need to
widen the southeast leg, this omission alloweddbgps to avoid considation of the impacts of
the southeastern leg cumulatively with thdieacomponents of the Project (the marine
container terminal and access road, tmedwestward widening of I-26).

80. The environmental review process sbalso have taken into account an
additional segment of the Project: the futueepkening of the Charlest Federal Navigational

Channel to accommodate the larger ships the Sipdinal is designed to serve. The berths of
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the proposed marine container terminal, whidh lve dredged to -49 feet MSL, are sized to
serve larger ships than can currently passutpin the Charleston Navigational Channel (-45 ft
MSL) fully loaded at low tide.

81. The Corps is aware that SPA intendartge the deepening of the Charleston
Navigation Channel to allow larger vessels to reach the new terminal at all times.

82. Should a permit for that deepening be sought in the future, as it will be,
consideration of the impacts thfat deepening as a cumulatmeinduced effect and related
project will have been defeated.

83. Through the above-described actiongd amissions, the Corps has segmented a
single massive Project and has avoided disoipsicknowledging and evalting that Project’s
cumulative impacts and alternatives to it. Hieject will cause more cumulative environmental
impacts than any individual part will causeitself, and its separation into piecemeal segments
prevents the consideration of alternatives dhtire Project that could reduce impacts to the
environment, prevent harm to public health better protect the area’s existing infrastructure,
which the Project as proposed will degrade.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of NEPA and APA — Falure adequately to assess and
disclose environmental impacts in the FEIS)

84. Plaintiff incorporates the allegationstioé preceding paragraphs as if set forth in
full.

85. NEPA requires, among other things, fledlieral agencies prepare a detailed EIS
on every proposal for major federal action that fisagnificantly affect the quality of the human

environment.” 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C). The Eh8st in turn include specific information

25



2:07-cv-03802-PMD Date Filed 03/31/2008  Entry Number 28 Page 26 of 50

required by statute and pursii@ao NEPA regulations promulgated by the Council on

Environmental Quality. 40 C.F.R. Part 1500sed).

86.

The statute requires thaeey EIS must be preparedth objective good faith and

must fully and fairly discuss the full rangefofeseeable environmental impacts of the proposed

action, its unavoidable adverse environmental effentd all alternativete the proposed action

that may avoid or minimize these adverseaffie 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C) and (E). The

“effects” that must be discussed in the EISude the “direct effectsdf the proposed action, the

indirect effects of the proposedtion, and the cuntative impact of the proposed action. 40

C.F.R. § 1508.8.

a.

The NEPA regulations define “directefts” as effects “which are caused by the
action and occur at the same time and place.” 40 C.F.R. § 1508.8(a).

The NEPA regulations define “indiredtexts” as effects “which are caused by

the action and are later in time or faat removed in distance, but are still
reasonably foreseeable.” 40 C.F.R. § 15@8.8Further, indirect effects may
include “growth inducing effects and otreffects related tonduced changes in

the pattern of land use, population densitgrowth rate, and related effects on

air and water and other natural systems, including ecosystems.” 40 C.F.R. §
1508.8(b).

The NEPA regulations define “cumulative impacts” as the “impact on the
environment which results from the incremental impact of the action when added
to other past, present, and reasonablysigable future actions regardless of what

agency or person undertakes such oftations. Cumulative impacts can result
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from individually minor but collectivelgignificant actions taking place over a
period of time.” 40 C.F.R. § 1508.7.
87.  The NEPA regulations also require an EIS to include discussion of the means to
mitigate adverse environmental impacts. 40 C.F.R. § 1502.16 (h).

88. The FEIS for the proposed terminal in ttase violates theseatlates of NEPA in

the following significant respects:

a. The FEIS fails to adequately assessoourately disclose the direct and indirect
effects of the proposed terminal oaffrc congestion and existing roads;

b. The FEIS fails to adequately assess orrately disclose the direct and indirect
effects of ship, truck, and other velaidtaffic associated with the proposed
terminal on the levels of coarse andkfiparticulates, ozone, nitrogen oxides,
sulfur oxides, and air toxins;

C. The FEIS fails to adequately assess;ldse, and addresstdisproportionately
high and adverse human health consegegmand environmental effects of the
Project on minority and low-income popudats, as required by Executive Order
No. 12,898;

d. The FEIS fails to adequately assess orrately disclose the direct and indirect
effects of the development and operatof the terminal and access road on
federally endangered and threatened spetiek as North Atlantic right whales,
manatees, sea turtles, and other wildliféhim vicinity of the proposed terminal;

e. The FEIS fails to adequately assesasocourately disclose the direct and indirect
effects of the proposed terminal on disgohoxygen levels ithe Cooper River;

f. The FEIS fails to adequately assesaanurately disclose the direct and indirect
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effects of the terminal and traffic assateid with the terminal’s business on global
warming, including disclosure and evdioa of the level of emissions of
greenhouse gases that will result from the Project;

g. The FEIS fails to adequately assess orrately disclose the indirect effects of
the future uses of the proposed termisath as its use by larger ships than can
currently be accommodated in the channel;

h. The FEIS fails to adequately assess orrately disclose the direct and indirect
effects of dredging, both for the bertbfsthe proposed terminal and future
dredging of the channel to accommodate larger ships the proposed terminal is
intended to attract;

I. The FEIS fails to adequately assesa@urately disclose the source of the 6.45
million cubic yards of material that mus¢ placed to support construction of the
terminal’s container storage yard and threct impacts on wetlands of excavation
of that amount of materidtom the source location;

J- The FEIS fails to adequately assesaarurately disclose the cumulative impacts
of the proposed terminal and access roadhe foregoing list of environmental
effects, combined with the operationpk-existing terminals, pre-existing
shipping traffic, pre-existig trucking and other roadaffic, pre-existing air and
water pollution, pre-existing ne¢, and future increasesthose impacts caused
by development and construction prompted and/or necessitated by the
construction of the terminal and access road,;

K. The FEIS fails to adequately assesaanurately disclose the means to mitigate

adverse impacts of the proposed termorahir quality degradation and ignores
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89.

practicable and viable mitigation alternatives; and

The FEIS fails to adequately assesaaurately disclose the direct and indirect
effects and cumulative impacts of the depenent and operation of the terminal
and access road in such other ways as may be revealed in discovery during this
action.

If incomplete or unavailable information relevant to reasonably foreseeable

significant adverse environmental effects angdauots is essential ®oreasoned choice among

alternatives and the overall cadtobtaining the information is netxorbitant, an agency must

include the information in aBIS. 40 C.F.R. § 1502.22(a).

90.

In the present case, the Corps failgd minimum, to include accurate and

complete information regarding the following setts that is essentied a reasoned choice

among alternatives:

a.

Information regarding the size of shipat will need to be accommodated by the
channel leading to the terminalthe foreseeable future;

An accurate economic benefits analysis;

Accurate and complete qualitatmed quantitative information regarding the
impacts of air toxics emissions and their effect on the local communities in the
vicinity of the proposed terminal;

Accurate and complete informatiomyaeding air toxicemissions from the
container ships that will use the proposed terminal,

Accurate and complete informatiomgaeding noise generation and its effect on
the local communities in the vicinity of the proposed terminal;

Information regarding the conclusigontained in the state water quality
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certification for the Project that the Projeatl lead to a vichtion of state water
quality standards of dissolved oxygen;

g. The source of the 6.45 million cubic yarddilbimaterial called for by the Project

and the impact on theource location; and

h. Accurate and complete information redjag shortcomings in the use of aerial

surveys to mitigate effects of the new terminal and associated sea traffic on the
North Atlantic right whale and a detailed plan for actual mitigation of those
effects.

91. In failing to adequately assess and aately disclose signidant environmental
effects and impacts of the proposed terminaltandclude the information described above, the
Corps violated their obligation under NEPA to takkard look at the @ronmental impacts of
the proposed Project.

92. The Corps’ failure to take a hard loatksignificant environmntal impacts of the
proposed actioniolates NEPA and its implementing réagtions, is arbitrary, capricious, an
abuse of discretion, and otherwisat in accordance with law, amlreviewable under the APA,
5U.S.C. 8§ 701-706.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of NEPA and APA — Segmentation)

93. Plaintiff incorporates the allegationstioé preceding paragraphs as if set forth in
full.

94. Under NEPA, “proposals which are relate@ach other closely enough to be, in
effect, a single course of action” must “be enxkd in a single impact statement.” 40 C.F.R.
§ 1502.4(a). Circumstances in which actions &hbe considered and evaluated together

include scenarios where two or more atsi@are “closely related”; where one action
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“automatically trigger[s]” anotheaction; where one action “canmatwill not proceed unless”
another action is “taken previously or simultangly”’; where two actions “are interdependent
parts of a large action”; where two actiongdécumulatively significant impacts”; and where
the proposed component action httkelor no independenttility or involves such a large and
irretrievable commitment of resources that it magually force a largeor related project to go
forward notwithstanding the environmental ceqgences. 40 C.F.R. 8 1508.25(a). In addition,
NEPA requires that the scopeabproject considered in an E$8all connect “logical termini and
be of sufficient length to address envir@mtal matters on a broad scope.” 23 C.F.R.

§ 771.111(f).

95. To instead break a proposed action gma@ll component parts to avoid reviewing
them together is to engage in imp&sible segmentation, which violates NEPA.

96. The proposed marine container termitiad terminal access road, the westward
widening of 1-26, the potentidter eastward widening of I62and the likely consequent
deepening of the navigation chahaee all related clady enough to be, in effect, a single course
of action and are interdependegairts of one large projec¥et the Corps has segmented the
overall Project into at least fiwgtistinct projects and are procerglito evaluate and disclose the
impacts of these segments in a piecemeal daslihereby obfuscating the true scale and nature
of the Project and the enormity of its impacts, and alternatives to it.

97. In segmenting the proposed Projdwt, Corps has violated NEPA by, among
other things:

a. Failing to adequately disclose, azalyconsider, or address the cumulative

impacts of their past, present, and reabbntoreseeable future actions relating to

the terminal and associated roads and infrastructure;
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b. Failing to consider and evaluate togethleéparts of the proposed Project, where
one part (the construction tfe terminal) automatically triggers other actions (the
access road, the widening of I1-26, and the dredging);

C. Failing to consider and evaluate togethleparts of the proposed Project, where
each part cannot or will nproceed unless the other [gagtre taken previously or
simultaneously;

d. Failing to consider and evaluate togethleéparts of the proposed Project, where
the segments (the terminal, the acceaslrthe 1-26 widening, and the dredging)
are all interdependent pia of a large action;

e. Failing to consider and evaluate togetieparts of the proposed Project, where
the various parts have cufatively significant impacts;

f. Failing to consider and aluate together all the ga of the proposed Project,
where the individuatomponents have little or nndependent utility (for
instance, the terminal will have littldility if the access road is not built, 1-26 is
not widened, and the channel is nadlyed, and those later actions will have
little or no independent utilitif not for the terminal);

g. Failing to consider and evaluate togethll the parts of the proposed Project
where one part involves such a largel &retrievable commitment of resources
that it may virtually force a larger orlaged project to go forward notwithstanding
the environmental consequences (fatamce, the building of the expensive
terminal will force the corteuction of the other parts dfie Project, including the

access road, the 1-26 wideniragd the dredging); and
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h. Engaging in illegal segmentation in suther ways as may be revealed during

discovery in this action.

98. By so doing, the Corps improperly segmented the analysis of impacts and skewed
the analysis of alternatives and impacts. é&@mple, segmentation hdras thus far precluded
a look at alternatives to the overall Project sasltonstruction of a new terminal in Jasper
County, the terminals described in paragraphl&é®ve, or greater usd rail in Charleston
sufficient to mitigate the massive strain thas thverarching Project will impose on Charleston’s
environment and surface transportation system.

99. The segmentation of the Project anliifa to consider cumulative impacts
violated NEPA and its implementing regulaticarsd is arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of
discretion, and otherwise not in@rdance with law, and is reviewable under the APA, 5 U.S.C.
88 701-706.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of NEPA and APA — Failure rigorously to examine reasonable alternatives)

100. PIlaintiff incorporates the allegationsloé preceding paragraphs as if set forth in
full.

101. NEPA requires that every EIS fully afiagfly discuss, among other things, the
alternatives to the proposediaat 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(E). NFA regulations require that
agencies rigorously explore and objectively ea#t all reasonable altatives to a proposed
action. 40 C.F.R. 8§ 1502.14(a). The secti@tusing alternativéss the heart of the
environmental impact statement.”

102. The alternatives considered by the EIStnmclude “reasonable alternatives not
within the jurisdiction of the lead agencyic“the alternative of no action.” 40 C.F.R.

§ 1502.14.
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103. The Corps failed to rigorously exploredaobjectively evaluate viable alternatives
to meet the purpose of the Projee, meeting containerized cargo terminal and shipping
demands on the southeastern United Statee.Chnps explored only variations of a single
alternative: building a new marim@ntainer terminal and supportiimgrastructure in the Port of
Charleston. The Corps ignored numerous othemaltees, in part due to the piecemealing of
Project components so as to defeat anyaxamination of alternatives to the whole.

104. The Corps improperly defined the purpose and need statement in the FEIS and
thereby ignored practicable altatives. As framed by the Corps, the purpose and need for the
proposed terminal is as follows: “To provide statvned port facilities tit meet the reasonably
projected throughput capacity forntainerized cargo in the staiéSouth Carolina for the next
twenty years.”FEIS at 2-3. By defining the purposetbé project in that manner, the Corps has
precluded consideration of numerous aléitre locations beyondhbse ports owned and
operated by the SPA.

105. Because of the improperly defined purpose and need statement, the Corps ignored
and failed to evaluate fully sites where the emwnental degradation would or could have been
less than the selected site.

106. The Corps failed to rigorously expl@med objectively evaluatsites outside of
Charleston County, including sites along ®avannah River in Jasper County.

107. The Corps failed to rigorously expl@med objectively evaluate the use of rail,
including existing rail lines, transport cargo from the new teémal instead of continuing to

add to the traffic congestionaag the highways and other roads.
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108. The Corps failed to rigorously exploredaobjectively evaluate the alternative of
an entity other than SPA constructing and operaitgrminal, either at the Port of Charleston or
elsewhere.

109. The Corps failed to rigorously exploredaobjectively evaluate the alternative of
a privately owned, non-governmental entity camnsing and operating a terminal, either at the
Port of Charleston or elsewhere.

110. The Corps’ failure to rigorously gere and objectively evaluate reasonable
alternatives to the proposedofarct violates NEPA and its ingmenting regulations, and is
arbitrary, capricious, an abusgdiscretion, and otherwise nintaccordance with law and is
reviewable under the APA, 5 U.S.C. 88 701-706.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of NEPA and APA — Failure to rigorously examine a no-action alternative)

111. Plaintiff incorporates the allegationsloé preceding paragraphs as if set forth in
full.

112. NEPA requires that every EIS fully andljadiscuss, rigorously explore, and
objectively evaluate, among othings, an alternative to the proposed action of taking no
action. 42 U.S.C. § 4332(E); 40 C.F.R. § 1502.14.

113. Inthe present case, the Corps failetgmrously explore ah objectively evaluate
a true no-action alternative to the Project, veinreneither the new terminal nor the access road
nor any supporting infrastructuveould be built, in part du® purposeful piecemealing of
Project components so as to defeat any remhéxation of alternatives to the whole. For
instance, the FEIS for the terminal and acceadway assumes that [-26 will be widened, while
the 1-26 widening study assumes that the termandl connecting highway will be built. None

of the environmental analysis documents rigelpgxamines an alternative wherein none of
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these Project components is built — which wdalive 1-26 operating aicceptable levels of
service, as it does todayijthout the expenditure &300 million of public money.

114. The Corps’ failure to rigorously expdoand objectively evaluate a true no-action
alternative to the proposed Prdjemlates NEPA and its impleamting regulations, is arbitrary,
capricious, an abuse of discretiamd otherwise not in accordane#h law, and is reviewable
under the APA, 5 U.S.C. 8§ 701-706.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of NEPA and APA — Failure to prepare a supplemento the FEIS after
substantial changes to the proposal and in light of new information)

115. Plaintiff incorporates the allegationsloé preceding paragraphs as if set forth in
full.

116. The NEPA regulations regeithat a federal agengyepare a supplement to the
EIS if either the agency makes substantial chaungéhe proposed action that are relevant to
environmental concerns, or there are significeaw circumstances or information relevant to
environmental concerns and bearing on tlmppsed action or its impacts. 40 C.F.R.

§ 1502.9(c)(1); 23 C.F.R. § 771.130(a).

117. Substantial changes in the proposeaadhat was the subject of the FEIS and
approved in the Record of Decision, and signiftagew circumstances or information since the
preparation of the FEIS, require the megiion of a new or supplemental EIS.

118. Substantial changes in the proposedadhiat require supplementation of the
FEIS include at least the following:

a. The addition of the widening of 5.3les of the northwest leg of 1-26 between

Exits 212 and 217, west of the Port acaesslway interchange, after realizing

that terminal traffic would cae that portion of I-26 to fail;
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d.

119.

The potential addition of the wideningtbe southeast leg of I-26 between Exits
217 and 219, east of the Padcess roadway interchange;

The addition of the dredging and exaton of the Charlesh Federal Navigation
channel to accommodate the larger ships will use the proposed terminal; and
Such other changes as are disoedeluring discovery in this action.

Significant new circumstances or infotioa that requires supplementation of the

FEIS includes at least the following:

a.

The fact that 1-26 will fail as a resoltthe construction of the terminal and access
road when it may not otherwise fail oatht will fail significantly earlier than it
would otherwise fail;

The fact that the terminBroject will lead Charlestointo non-attainment for one
or more air quality standards, including Pivion-attainment;

Professor Al Parrish of Charleston Swmrh University, the primary consultant
who provided SPA with estimates of econofpenefits of the new terminal in
terms of new jobs and otherwise, has péshduilty to several counts of fraud in a
case involving numerous counts of crimlifraud based on allegations that he
defrauded 460 investors of tens of noills of dollars, which casts doubt on the
accuracy and trustworthiness of the répand estimates he provided to SPA;
Financial and shipping data recently asled by SPA demonstrates that predicted
economic benefits of the new terminare likely greatly overvalued, thereby
skewing the economic anyais of the EIS;

An agreement reached between the Gmrs of South Carolina and Georgia to

proceed with a new shipping terminal in Jasper County, South Carolina, which
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would send freight by rail to an inteadal terminal proposed for Orangeburg
County, South Carolina; and

f. Such other changes as are discedealuring discovery in this action.

120. Based on the above subgtrdhanges in the proposadtion and the significant
new information since the issuance of the FEI8 Gbrps’ failure to prepare a Supplement to the
EIS violates NEPA and its implamting regulations, and is arlaity and capricious, an abuse of
discretion, and otherwise not in@rdance with law and is revialle under the APA, 5 U.S.C.
8§ 701-706.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of CWA and APA — Failure to Condder Less Destructive Alternatives Pursuant
to Clean Water Act Section 404)

121. Plaintiff incorporates the allegationsloé preceding paragraphs as if set forth in
full.

122. The 404(b) Guidelines state that thellehe “no discharge” into jurisdictional
areas "“if a practicable alternative” exists. T@ps, in this case, violated the CWA by ignoring
practicable alternatives.

123. The Corps improperly defined the purpose and need statement in the FEIS and
thereby ignored practicable altatives. As framed by the Corps, the purpose and need for the
proposed terminal is as follows: “To provide statvned port facilities tit meet the reasonably
projected throughput capacity forrtainerized cargo in the stat€South Carolina for the next
twenty years.”FEIS at 2-3. By defining the purposetbé project in that manner, the Corps has
precluded consideration of numerous aléifre locations beyondhose ports owned and
operated by the SPA. First, ther@® arbitrarily electé to consider only ports owned by South

Carolina and ignored those owned by other statelsprivate entities. Second, because the
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South Carolina SPA only operates and operatedaailities in Georgeten and Charleston, and

because Georgetown is not a practicable altemahe statement of purpose and need adopted

by the Corps effectively limited the altetives to SPA-owned sites in Charleston.

124.

Because of the improperly defined purpose and need statement, the Corps

ignored and failed to evaluate fully sites wdnéne environmental degradation would or could

have been less than the seledtitéel. Plaintiff previously identified several alternatives that

would have been less environnety harmful in comment lettert® the Corps, including:

a.

125.

Use of rail to transport the cargo to anohfrthe Naval Base terminal instead of
relying 100% on trucks, which was set fods necessitatingdlaccess road to
connect the terminal to Interstate Z2@lavhich will cause 1-26 to reach a failing
level of service, threby leading to further construction to expand that interstate;
Use of a privately run terminal recendgnstructed in Virginia with near-dock
intermodal rail;

Use of a publicly owned terminal in @&ken City, Georgia, with near-dock
intermodal rail;

Utilization of a site along the Savannah River in Jasper County, South Carolina,
that the states of South Carolina &ebrgia have agreed to develop into a
container shipping terminal; and

A true no-action alternative (as opposedh® alternative labeled “no-action” by
the FEIS, where pre-existing terminalsGharleston Harbor would be improved
to still serve the increased demand in Charleston).

Each of these alternatives would leatbsser impacts on aquatic resources in

South Carolina and environmental impacts oNiesad should have been evaluated thoroughly
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and, if environmentally preferable, selected dheralternative approved in the permits. Each
could have resulted in thegladation of fewer acres of Wl@nds and open waters, and could
have resulted in less dredging ditichg. Yet these environmentallgreferable alternatives were
either ignored altogether, or inadequately eatdd in the FEIS, or erroneously dismissed as
impracticable, all in violatin of the CWA and the mandate of 40 C.F.R. § 230.10 to analyze
reasonable and practicable alternatives.

126. The Corps’ artificial awstraints on the Projectdefined purpose and need
resulted in a violation of the Corps’ mandatduty to analyze a full range of practicable and
reasonable alternatives. SE2C.F.R. § 230.10(a)(2).

127. A site fails to comply with the Guelines, and may not & as a specified

disposal site for a Section 404rpet, where a “practicable alteative to the proposed alternative
[exists] that would have lessigerse effect on the aquatic ecosyst so long as such alternative
does not have other significant adverse enviemal consequences . ...” 40 C.F.R. §
230.12(a)(3); sed0 C.F.R. 8 230.10(a). The Corps viethSection 404 of thClean Water Act
and implementing regulations by issuing the pexmvhich will require dredging and excavating
approximately 78 acres of open water in the Cooper River and the placement of fill material on
approximately 70 acres of wetlands and other isatdere practicable alternatives that would
avoid or greatly minimize wetland impacts werailable and economically viable. St@
C.F.R. 8§ 230.10(a). These violations of the £%hd its implementing regulations are arbitrary
and capricious, an abuse of discretion, atidrwise not in accordance with law and is
reviewable under the APA, 5 U.S.C. §8 701-706.

128. The EPA has a statutory duty to instompliance with the 404(b) Guidelines.

EPA violated that duty by not requiring the arsid of a full range opracticable and reasonable
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alternatives, and by not vetoing the permit untéeefection 404(c) authority when the Corps
failed to perform such an analysis.
SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of CWA and APA — Failure to SelectLess Destructive Alternatives Pursuant to
Clean Water Act Section 404)
129. PIlaintiff incorporates the allegationsloé preceding paragraphs as if set forth in
full.
130. The FEIS acknowledges thia¢ three non-selected altatives evaluated in the
FEIS (the no-action alternative, the Daniel Islaitérnative, and the Clouter Island alternative)
all would have caused fewadverse impacts to water resces and wetlands than would the
alternative approved ithe permits, including:

a. lower adverse impacts to dissolved oxygsalinity, nutrients, heavy metals, and

suspended sediments;

b. smaller areas to be dredged to create the berths and access channel;

C. less increase in shoaling (except @outer Island alternative); and

d. less than half the amount afreage of wetlands disturbadd habitat lost to build
the terminal.

131. The CWA prohibits the Corps from pétting “the discharge of fill material if
there is a practicable alternative which would havess adverse impact” and that the failure to
consider and select a lessydging, practicable alteative renders the issuance of a permit

arbitrary and capricious. Utahns v. U.S. D@U5 F.3rd 1152, 1189-90 (10th Cir. 2002) (citing

40 C.F.R. § 230.10(a)); seés040 C.F.R. § 230.12(a)(3)(i)). Acuatingly, the selection of the
preferred alternative over the othibree alternatives evaluatedtive FEIS, as well as the other

alternatives identified in comment letterghe Corps, violates the CWA and its implementing
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regulations, and is arbitragnd capricious, an abuse o$ctietion, and otherwise not in
accordance with law and is reviewable under the APA, 5 U.S.C. 88 701-706.
EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of CWA and APA — Failure to Include Sufficient Information to Make a
Reasonable Judgment Pursuant to Clean Water Act Section 404)

132. Plaintiff incorporates the allegationsloé preceding paragraphs as if set forth in
full.

133. Federal law provides that a proposetiairge must be@find to violate the 404
Guidelines where “[tlhere does nextist sufficient information to make a reasonable judgment as
to whether the proposed discharge will compith these Guidelines.” 40 C.F.R. 8
230.12(a)(3)(iv).

134. The Corps made the decision to isseg#rmits without “sufficient information
to make a reasonable judgment,” in violatad0 C.F.R. § 230.12(a)(3)(iv). Among the areas
not adequately evaluated so as to prena reasoned judgment by the Corps are:

a. The FEIS and ROD fail to adequatelyakyate or disclose the environmental

impacts of several practble, less environmentally damaging alternatives.

b. The FEIS and ROD fail to draw the nesary connections between the scale of
the project, including the planned suptg infrastructure, and foreseeable
environmental implications. For instantiee project is tailored to serve an
emerging class of very large containershipgferred to as post-Panamax ships in
the FEIS — which will likely generate subatial pressure to deepen Charleston’s
navigation channels, and increase niegeeffects on the aquatic environment
(e.g., decreased dissolved oxygen andeiases of salinity, nutrients, heavy

metals, and suspended sediments). Intiagithe massive increase in port traffic
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135.

from the terminal will cause portions of 1-26 to fail and will therefore lead to the
expansion of I-26 as a necessary and unabtadaart of the project, but that fact
is not fully acknowledged ardkalt with in the FEIS.

The FEIS fails to consider the enviroental impacts of this proposed port
expansion in the context of other doesistern port expaioss, including, for
instance, the increased likelihood of imaitt endangered North Atlantic right
whales by ship strikes.

The FEIS does not identify the sourcelod borrow material, despite the fact that
borrow material mining in South Carolina can have significant impacts on
wetlands.

The FEIS does not acknowledge that thggqmt will lead to a violation of state
water quality standards, evérough the state water quglcertification for the
project states that thegect will result in the viation of the standard for
dissolved oxygen (diminishment ofsdblved oxygen by no more than .1 mg/I
according to S.C. Code Regs. 61-68(D)(4)(a)).

In light of these and other deficiendeshe information contained in the FEIS,

the Corps had insufficient information to judgbether the project violated the 404 Guidelines,

and the issuance of the permitghout full information therefore violates 40 C.F.R. §

230.12(a)(3)(iv) and is arbitrary and capricioais,abuse of discretion, and otherwise not in

accordance with law and is reviewable under the APA, 5 U.S.C. §8 701-706.
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NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of CWA and APA — Failure to Include Sufficient Information to Make a
Reasonable Judgment Pursuant to Clean Water Act Section 404)

136. Plaintiff incorporates the allegationsloé preceding paragraphs as if set forth in
full.

137. The 404 guidelines prohibit discharges Wi#t‘cause or contribute[] . . . to
violations of any applicable State water giyastandard.” 40 C.F.R. § 230.10(b)(2).

138. The permit for the terminal allowrse reduction of dis$eed oxygen in the
Cooper River in the 77.9 acres to be dredged ®b#rth of the proposed terminal by 0.2 mg/I.

139. This reduction violates South Carolinstate water quality standard for dissolved
oxygen, which prohibits the lowering of dissolvexiygen by more than 0.1 mg/l. S.C. Code
Regs. 61-68(D)(4)(a).

140. The FEIS failed to acknowledge that post-project water quality will be lower
than the regulatory standard in effect fag tbooper River. The Corps’ reliance on these
omissions and misstatements in issuing thenfieand the Corps’ issuance of the permit
violates the 404 Guidelines and is arbitrang capricious, an abuse of discretion, and
otherwise not in accordancatiwlaw and is reviewable under the APA, 5 U.S.C. 8§88 701-706.

141. EPA violated its statutory duty to imswcompliance with the 404(b) Guidelines
by not vetoing the permit under its Section 404&(athority when th€orps issued a permit

that violated watequality standards.
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